

Constitution of the NSCC Association

Name

1. The name of the Association shall be The NSCC Association (the “Association”).

Address

2. The address of the Association to be that of one of the elected officers of the Association.

Objectives

3. The objective of the Association is support and sustain interest in sports racing cars within South Africa and to administer a championship for sports racing cars known initially as NSCC.

Eligibility

4. Membership is open to any person upon payment of the stipulated membership fee(s).

Financial status

5. The Association shall be a non-profit organisation and member fees shall be used solely for the administration and promotion of the Association for the benefits of its members.

Liability

6. Each member’s financial liability to the Association is limited to the payment of the membership fee(s).

Ordinary Membership

7. Entitles the member to vote on matters pertaining to
 - a) This constitution and changes hereto,
 - b) The election of members to the Board together with the Chairperson and Treasurer of the Association,
 - c) Adoption / approval of the financial statements of the Association,
 - d) Adoption / approval of the membership fees of the Association, and
 - e) Adoption / approval of the budget of the Association.

Racing Membership

8. In addition to the rights of an ordinary member, entitles the member to vote on matters pertaining to
 - a) The election of the NSCC Coordinator
 - b) The removal of appointees to the Racing Committee, if any, and
 - c) The conduct of the NSCC as proposed by the Racing Committee.

Administration

9. A Board with a minimum of three members and not more than five elected annually by the applicable members at the Annual General Meeting, shall administer the Association and three of their number shall serve in the positions of
 - a) Chairperson
 - b) Treasurer
 - c) NSCC Coordinator (elected by the Racing Members)
10. A Racing Committee to administer the NSCC
 - a) Shall chaired by the NSCC Coordinator,

- b) Shall have not less than two additional members who shall be appointed by the NSCC Coordinator, and
- c) If at any time there is a vote of greater than 66% of the Racing Members objecting to one or more of those appointments, the NSCC Coordinator shall withdraw that appointment and substitute with another.

Quorum & Voting

- 11. The quorum for any meeting shall be 20% of the paid-up members (by class of membership) present in person or by proxy.
- 12. Save as expressly stated elsewhere and a quorum having been duly established, a vote shall pass when supported by 51% or more of the members present (by class of membership) in person or by proxy.
- 13. Any amendment to this Constitution shall require the support of 66% or more of the ordinary members present in person or by proxy.
- 14. Round-Robin resolutions shall be deemed validly adopted when consented to in writing by the respective majority of the entire membership (by respective class) or by a majority of the members of a particular organ of the Association as applicable.

Annual General Meeting

- 15. An Annual General Meeting (AGM) shall be held in November or as soon as possible thereafter.
- 16. The term of all Directors, officers, and committee members shall end upon the date of the AGM but nothing shall prevent them standing again for re-election.
- 17. The matters listed in 7 a) to 7 e) together with 8 a) shall be voted upon at the AGM.
- 18. Notice of the AGM shall be given 60 days in advance.
- 19. Proposal for any resolution to be considered shall be submitted to the Chairperson in writing signed by two members no later than 45 days prior to the AGM.
- 20. The agenda shall be circulated 30 days prior to the AGM.

Special General Meeting

- 21. A Special General Meeting in order to consider any matter may, with 30 days notice, be called by
 - a) By the Board
 - b) By demand by 10% of the ordinary members submitted to the Chairperson.

Other

- 22. The Board may from time-to-time adopt rules which shall govern the day-to-day conduct of the Association and which shall bind the Association and its members unless overturned at the first AGM subsequent to the adoption of the rule(s) by a simple majority of the ordinary members.
- 23. Any member who in the opinion of the Board commits any wilful breach of this Constitution or who performs any acts prejudicial to the interests and reputation of the Association (save that such a member should be afforded reasonable opportunity to disprove the alleged breach) may have their membership suspended or terminated.
- 24. Any notice required to be given pursuant to this Constitution shall be deemed to have been validly served if transmitted by e-mail to that address provided by a member from time-to-time to the Association.
- 25. In accordance with the requirements of the South African Revenue Service, it is acknowledged that
 - a) The Association is formed for the cultivation and participation of sport as a pastime,

- b) No meals, liquor, or accommodation may be furnished from proceeds of the Association,
- c) Upon dissolution, the assets of the Association must be transferred to a similar sporting association,
- d) Statements of income & expenditure together with a balance sheet must be prepared annually,
- e) The Constitution of the Association must be signed.

Adopted at the founding meeting of the Association held at North Riding on the 4th day of January, 2018

Rules of the NSCC Association

Membership Fees

1. The annual fees for membership of the Association, which shall be reviewed at each subsequent AGM, are:
 - a) Ordinary Members – R10 (Ten Rand)
 - b) Racing Members – R250 (Two Hundred and Fifty Rand)
2. Racing Members who elect to pay their membership fee prior to 30 January of each year shall receive a 20% discount.